
Question List - TTX Date Sent Response Date Sent

When you have a chance can you send me the spec 
documents for this bid? 11.13.25

We only have the RFQ and the approved OLDCC scope.  
The RFQ was taken from the scope. 11.18.25

request an electronic copy of the specifications or any 
other documents associated with this project: Project 
Title: Scenario Planning Training

11.17.25
We only have the RFQ and the approved OLDCC scope.  
The RFQ was taken from the scope. 11.18.25

If a fee is required, please inform me beforehand. No fee is required. 11.18.25

Can FHRC share an expected budget range or a 
general size/scale of effort for the TTX project? This 
helps us propose a realistic team and approach. 11.17.25 The budget is $100,000 or 13-16 communities maximum. 11.18.25

Does FHRC have an estimated number of total 
participants expected for the tabletop exercise so we 
can plan room setup, facilitation staffing, and materials? 13-16 maximum 11.18.25

Will FHRC provide the exercise venue, or is the 
consultant expected to handle facility reservation and 
setup? FHRC will handle the venue and setup 11.18.25

Does FHRC already have preferred scenario themes 
they want included, or should we propose a set of 
options for FHRC to choose from?

FHRC noted some suggestions in the RFQ."transportation, 
utilities, drone, or extreme weather events  "The consultant 
will work with the communities to select the final scenarios 
with their input. 11.18.25

What is FHRC’s preferred exercise duration and format 
(half day, full day, or other)? At least a full day with time for feedback at the conclusion 11.18.25
Will FHRC provide prior TTX materials, MIR data, 
hazard mitigation plans, and emergency management 
plans, or should the consultant obtain those 
independently from each jurisdiction?

MIR is posted on FHRC home page. FHRC will provide the links to county/
regional emergency management plans below. FHRC has no prior TTX 
materials.https://www.rileycountyks.gov/DocumentCenter/View/20246/
Public-Kansas-Region-I-Hazard-Mitigation-Plan-092020-1-5 (currently 
being updated) 11.18.25

Are there any specific data-handling protocols (e.g., 
CUI, FOUO, encryption, storage requirements) that we 
need to follow when developing scenarios or 
documenting results?

Unknown at this time. To be determined with the 
participating entities in the TTX planning process. 11.18.25

Does FHRC anticipate high-level project concepts, or 
more detailed items such as rough cost ranges, priority 
rankings, or preliminary scopes?

Provide rough cost ranges, priority rankings, and 
preliminary scopes

11.18.25
Would FHRC consider a hybrid or fully virtual option for 
participants who cannot attend in person, or should the 
proposal assume an entirely in-person event?

Prefer an in-person event but understand some may have 
to attend virtually. 11.18.25

Is FHRC envisioning a single integrated scenario with 
multiple complicating injects, or several scenarios to 
test separate vulnerabilities in isolation?

FHRC is open to either. Final decision to be decided with 
participating entities in the TTX planning process. 11.18.25

May the TTX include unmanned aircraft and other 
hazards that may not be identified in the "Military 
Installation Resilience Study, local emergency 
management plans, and hazard mitigation plans" or 
should it stay strictly within the bounds of hazards 
described in those documents?

TTX may include unmanned aircraft and other hazards that 
may not be identified in the Military Installation Resilience 
Study. local emergency and hazard mitigation plans.  11.18.25



 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFQ) 
Regional Tabletop Exercise-Installation Readiness Grant, OLDCC 
Issued by: Flint Hills Regional Council (FHRC) 
Issue Date: November 10, 2025 
Questions Due: November 17, 2025 (Submit questions to rfp@flinthillsregion.org) 
Submission Deadline: December 9, 2025, at 5:00 p.m., CT. 
Point of Contact: rfp@flinthillsregion.org 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
The Flint Hills Regional Council (FHRC), on behalf of its regional member jurisdictions, is soliciting proposals 
from qualified firms to design, conduct, and report on a regional Tabletop Exercise (TTX) in support of the 
recently awarded OLDCC Installation Readiness grant, funded by the Office of Local Defense Community 
Cooperation (OLDCC). This exercise will simulate coordinated responses to multiple threat scenarios affecting 
defense communities in the Flint Hills region, enhancing interagency coordination, readiness, and 
infrastructure resilience.  
 
2. BACKGROUND 
The Tabletop Exercise is a required deliverable under FHRC’s Installation Readiness grant, enhancing the 
resilience of defense communities in the Flint Hills region. 
 
3. PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES 
The exercise will engage regional stakeholders— city and county governments, emergency management 
agencies, and utility providers—in a scenario-based planning event to: 

• Test coordination mechanisms under encroachment, threat, and emergency conditions, such as 
transportation, utilities, drone, or extreme weather events 

• Identify gaps in regional preparedness and response planning; 
• Develop actionable recommendations to enhance civilian-military collaboration and readiness. 

 
4. SCOPE OF WORK 
Performance Period: Eight (8) months from Notice to Proceed 
Lead Agency: Flint Hills Regional Council 
Consultant Role: Primary designer, facilitator, and documenter of the Tabletop Exercise 
 
Tasks and Deliverables  
Task 1: Research Current Conditions, Risks, and Hazards 
Description: 
Analyze existing conditions and regional vulnerabilities based on the Flint Hills Military Installation Resilience 
Study, local emergency management plans, and hazard mitigation plans. Establish a baseline understanding of 
key infrastructure. 
Deliverables: 

• Baseline Current Conditions Report 
• Regional Infrastructure Risk Summary 

 
Task 2: Pre-Exercise Stakeholder Engagement and Preparation 
Description: 

mailto:rfp@flinthillsregion.org


 
Prepare for the tabletop exercise through structured pre-work: 
Pre-Exercise Stakeholder Interviews 

• Meeting Logistics and Scheduling 
• Scenario and Agenda Development 

Deliverables: 
• Interview Summary Report 
• Draft Exercise Agenda and Playbooks 
• Finalized Exercise Scenarios 

 
Task 3: Execute Tabletop Exercise and Capture Results 
Description: 
Facilitate the tabletop exercise session, encouraging active participation across jurisdictions and sectors. Focus 
on real-time reactions to simulated events, coordination across agencies, and identification of future needs. 

• Conduct Facilitated Tabletop Exercise Workshop 
Facilitate Group Discussions and Ideation Sessions 
Document Workshop Results 

Deliverables: 
• Tabletop Exercise Workshop Summary Report 

Shared Requirements and Resources List 
Draft Project Concepts for Readiness Improvements 

 
Task 4: Final Report and Recommendations 
Description: 
Synthesize findings from Tasks 1–3 into a comprehensive Final Report, including prioritized action, project 
concepts, and next steps for implementation. 
Deliverables: 

• Final Readiness Recommendations Report 
• Prioritized Action and Project Concepts and Plan 

 
5. EXPECTED PARTICIPATION 
Participants will include representatives from: 

• Garrison and emergency management offices 
• City and County governments (Riley, Geary, Pottawatomie, Clay County) total 13-16 municipalities. 
• Utility providers (water, wastewater, energy, communications). 
• Regional emergency management and planning agencies. 

The selected consultant will coordinate closely with FHRC and partners to ensure all materials and discussions 
comply with applicable data sensitivity and information handling requirements. 
 
6. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
Proposals must include: 

1. Cover Letter 
2. Technical Approach addressing all four tasks listed above 
3. Relevant Experience with military installations, defense communities, resilience, or emergency 

exercises 
4. Resumes of Firm and Key Personnel 
5. Provide three professional references and a list of communities where your firm has successfully 

conducted a Tabletop Exercise (TTX) or similar planning exercise. 
 



 
Proposals should be submitted in PDF format via email to rfp@flinthillsregion.org on December 9, 2025, 5:00 
p.m. CT. 
 
7.PROCUREMENT CONDITIONS 

• All procurement and contracting will comply with 2 CFR 200 – Uniform Administrative Requirements. 
• The selected firm must adhere to all OLDCC grant and federal requirements. 
• Selected firms will interview with the selection committee via Zoom. 
• FHRC will negotiate the final scope, cost, and timeline with the selected consultant. 
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